HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 6, 2016
8:49 a. m

8:49: 27 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Thonpson called the House Finance Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:49 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Mark Neuman, Co-Chair
Representati ve Steve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Representati ve Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Represent ati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative Lynn Gattis
Representative David Quttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki
Representative Cathy Minoz
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Tanm e WI son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Sponsor; Representative Neil Foster,

Sponsor, House District; Paul LaBol | e, Staff,

Representative Neil Foster; Kevin Wrley, CEO Division of

Retirements and Benefits, Departnent of Admnistration;

Kat hy Wasser man, Executive Director, Al aska Mnici pal

League; Brodi e Anderson, Staff, Representative Steve
Thonpson; Kat hi e \Wasser man, Al aska  Muni ci pal League,

Anchorage; Kathy Lea, Chief Pension Oficer, D vision of

Retirement and Benefits, Departnment of Administration; Kim
Ski pper, Staff, Representative Dan Saddler; Jeff Jessee,

Chi ef Executive Oficer, Al aska Ment al Health  Trust

Aut hority; Sara Kuecim Self, Juneau; Pam Leary, Director,

Division of Treasury, Departnent of Revenue; Representative
Shel | ey Hughes, Sponsor; Stuart Kr ueger, Staff,

Represent ati ve Shel | ey Hughes.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Shanda Huntington, Cty of Galena, Glena; Lori King, Self,
Juneau; Stuart Spielman, Autism Speaks, Wshington DC
Patrick Reinhart, Governor's Council on Disabilities and
Special Ed, Anchorage; Mke Coons, Legislative Director,
Citizens Initiatives.

SUMVARY
HB 47 PERS CONTRI BUTI ONS BY MUNI Cl PALI TI ES

CSHB 47 (FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with
a "do pass" recommendation and wth one new
fiscal i npact note by the Departnent of
Adm ni stration.

HB 188 PERSON W DI SABI LI TY SAVI NGS ACCOUNTS

HB 188 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

HCR 4 US COUNTERMAND CONVENTI ON DELEGATES

CSHCR 4 (STA) was REPORTED out of commttee with
a "do pass" recomendation and wth one new
indeterm nate fiscal note by the Legislature.

SB 124 EXTEND SUNSET ON AK COWM SSI ON ON AG NG
SB 124 was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass” recommendation and with a previous fiscal
i npact note: FN3 (SFC for DHS).

#sb124
SENATE BILL NO 124

"An Act extending the term nation date of the Al aska
Comm ssion on Aging; and providing for an effective
date."

8: 50: 48 AM

SENATOR BILL STOLTZE, SPONSOR, remarked that the only
out standi ng conversation related to the bill was about the
fiscal notes. He noted the reduction of one, wth a
recommendation of two position cuts. He stated that it was

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



a determnation by the admnistration in the follow ng
fiscal year. He shared that the conm ssion had recommended
the sunset. He felt that there was broad public support of

the bill, and a strong constituency.

Co-Chair Thonpson appreciated the bill bei ng brought
forward

8:52: 07 AM

AT EASE

8:53: 07 AM

RECONVENED

Representative Gara referred to the fiscal note. He asked
about the positions being deleted. Senator Stoltze stated
he was not at the epicenter of the finance. He thought
there was a suggestion for deeper cuts. He thought the
deletion of 2 positions presented a stark reality. He did
not think having a place holder for discussion was
necessary. He thought the l|egislature could use a rem nder
of the

Co-Chair Thonpson reiterated that the bill Ilimted one
position, and shared that the followi ng |egislatures could
make nore reductions.

Co-Chair Neunman agreed with Senator Stoltze that cuts were
necessary. He thought the fiscal note should remain as
witten.

8:57: 00 AM

Representative Quttenberg enphasized that the reduction in
the note reflected a 50 percent reduction of staff over 2
years. He spoke to the fact that the people on the
commi ssion were overachievers and was concerned wth
pl acing too nuch of a burden. He thought the cuts were too
steep. He suggested comng back in a year's tinme to
reeval uat e.

Representati ve Kawasaki asked about noving to anend the
fiscal note. Co-Chair Thonpson replied that he did not want
to anend the fiscal note.

Representative Kawasaki pointed out that the report (copy
on file) fromthe Conm ssion on Aging spoke specifically to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



state inplenentation of the plan. He stressed that the work
on the plan began in FY 14, which was two years ahead of
the work. It was anticipated that the comm ssion would work
on the revised plan for submission to the federa
gover nnent .

Representative Gara thought the bill was too inportant to
hold up the comm ssion. She thought it would be best to get
the bill passed and ready to nove forward to get it to the

floor for a vote.

Vice-Chair Saddler relayed that the significant decline in
revenue was not a surprise to the comm ssion.

9:03: 23 AM

Representative Gara referred to the second page of the
fiscal note. He read a portion of the fiscal note nmeno. He
indicated that the reduction would dimnish the agency's
ability to fulfill its statutory responsibilities. He felt
that the commttee should only cut one position, and
eval uate whether or not to cut another position in the
future.

Representative Gara MOVED to ADOPT conceptual Anmendment 1
to the fiscal note:

The fiscal note would only delete one position in the
current year, wthout the statenment of intent that a
second position be deleting the foll ow ng year.

Representative WIson OBJECTED for discussion. She remarked
that the state plan was witten, and updated w th changes.
She felt that the comm ssion would continue to progress and
make changes. She appreciated the reduction of one
position, and stressed that there would be an eval uati on of
t he inmpact of that reduction.

Representative Quttenberg reenphasized his position that it
woul d be easier to keep the third position currently and
cut next year. He was concerned of the

Representative Minoz renmarked that it appeared that there
were three positions reduced, because $93,000 was cut from
FY 17 and an additional $200,000 in FY 18.

9:07:32 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



Vi ce-Chair Saddl er enphasized that the finance conmttee
made spendi ng and reduction deci sions.

Senator Stoltze was not anticipating a discussion about the
fiscal note. He relayed his conversations with the other
body. He relayed that there had been an array of
di scussi ons.

Representative Wl son MAI NTAI NED her OBJECTI ON.
Aroll call vote was taken on the noti on.

I N FAVOR: Quttenberg, Kawasaki, Minoz, Edgnon, Gara
OPPCSED: Gattis, Pruitt, Saddler, WIson, Neunman, Thonpson

The MOTION FAILED (5/6). Conceptual Anmendnment 1 failed to
be adopt ed.

Vice-Chair Saddler reviewed the fiscal note.

Co-Chair Neuman MOVED to REPORT SB 124 out of conmttee
wi th individual reconmendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not e.

SB 124 was REPCRTED out of comittee with a "do pass"”
recommendation and with a previous fiscal inpact note: FN3
(SFC for DHS).

9:13:36 AM
AT EASE

9:16:36 AM
RECONVENED

#hb47
HOUSE BI LL NO. 47

"An Act requiring each municipality wth a popul ation
that decreased by nore than 25 percent between 2000
and 2010 that participates in the defined benefit
retirement plan of the Public Enployees' Retirenent
System of Alaska to contribute to the system an anount
calculated by applying a rate of 22 percent of the
total of all base salaries paid by the nmunicipality to
enpl oyees of the nunicipality who are active nenbers
of the system during a payroll period; reducing the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



rate of interest payable by a nunicipality with a
popul ation that decreased by nore than 25 percent
between 2000 and 2010 that is delinquent in
transmtting enployee and enployer contributions to
the defined benefit retirement plan of the Public
Enpl oyees’ Ret i r ement System  of Al aska; gi vi ng
retrospective effect to the substantive provisions of
the Act; and providing for an effective date."

9:16:41 AM

Co-Chair Neuman MOVED to ADOPT the proposed conmttee
substitute for HB 47 (FIN), Wrk Draft (29-LS0285\1). There
bei ng NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

Co- Chair Thonpson queried the changes in the conmttee
substitute.

BRODI E ANDERSQN, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE STEVE THOMPSON,

rel ayed the changes to the bill. He stated that there was a
title change to conform to the changes nmade wthin the
bill. He shared that the bill added a new Section 1, and
the sponsor will explain the new section. He relayed that

the CS deleted the old Section 3, which had a retroactive
clause. He stated that the CS added a new Section 4, and
t he sponsor was prepared to explain that new section.

REPRESENTATI VE NEIL FOSTER, SPONSOR, indicated his staff
woul d be presenting the bill.

PAUL LABOLLE, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE NEIL FOSTER, reviewed
the bill. He |ooked at Section 1, page 1, line 12, which
was the new subsection under 39.35.610 allowing the
adm nistrator to determne the rate of assessed interest.
He stated that Section 2 was the old Section 1. He rel ayed
that Section 3 added a reference to the new subsection that
was created in Section 4. He shared that Section 4 allowed
for the admnistrator of Public Enployees' Retirenent
System (PERS) to assess an interest rate at a |ower value
than otherwi se dictated in the section, if the enployer was
a municipality who had lost nore than 25 percent of their
popul ati on between the 2000 and 2010 census.

Representative Mnoz queried the issue of a conmunity

regaining its population. M. Labolle responded that it
woul d have to be done through additional |egislation.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



9:20: 36 AM

Co-Chair Neuman asked about the mgration from rural
comunities. Representative Foster responded that, overall,
there were sone small mgration nunbers fromrural to urban
areas. He remarked that Galena had a major mgration out of
the area, because of the relocation of the mlitary base.

M. Labolle agreed that the mlitary base was relocated
from Gal ena. He stressed that the |egislation was specified
to those communities who |ost population from the 2000 to
2010 census. Therefore, future population |Ioss would not be
affected by the confines of the legislation. He pointed out
that the census affected Galena, Pelican, Atka, St. George,
and Anderson. He explained that St. George and Anderson did
not have any PERS enpl oyees, so they were not affected by
the legislation. He deferred to the departnent to explain
why Pelican and Atka were not affected by the |egislation.

Representative Cuttenberg noted that the bill's [|anguage
was perm ssive, and not required. He wondered if that was
the intent of the legislation. M. Labolle replied in the
affirmative. He furthered that the intent of the bill was
to allow for negotiation. The original version of the bil
had a retroactive effective date, and changed the
delinquency rate in statute for affected communities. It
was determ ned that there should be negotiation between the
adm ni strator of the program and the affected enpl oyer.

Representative GCuttenberg wondered how the 2020 census
woul d affect Anderson and the legislation. M. Labolle
replied that the legislation was a "floor not a ceiling.”
He explained that the current paynents were 22 percent of
the current salaries or 22 percent of the 2008 floor,
whi chever is greater. He explained that a growing community
with growi ng enpl oyees, the community would pay the greater
of the floor. Furthernore, Anderson would not need to pay
the 22 percent of current enpl oyee sal aries.

9:25:28 AM

Representative Gara | ooked at page 2 of the bill, and noted
the two possible calculations for how nuch the nmunicipality
should pay for the PERS enployees: the greater of 22
percent of the nunmber of current enployees; or the nunber
of enployees in 2008. He renmarked that he did not
understand why the 2008 year was specified. He surm sed

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



that if the nunber of current enployees was |arger than
what was in the new section, then the paynent was 22
percent of the nunber of current enployees. M. Labolle
responded in the affirmative. He explained that there was a
bill in 2008, which took the failing PERS systens, and
pooled them into one state system He remarked that there
was a concern that enployers could lay off enployees, hire
contract enployees, and therefore only pay the 22 percent
of the current enployees. Thereby I|eaving the renaining
outstanding liability on the state. The floor was created
to prevent that possibility.

Representati ve Kawasaki asked for M. Labolle to explain
the retroactivity. M. Laboll e thought Representative
Kawasaki was | ooking at a previous version of the bill.
Representati ve Kawasaki asked i f t here was not
retroactivity. M. Labolle confirned that there was no
retroactivity in the bill.

Co- Chair Thonmpson OPENED public testinony.

9:28: 35 AM

SHANDA HUNTI NGTON, CTY OF GALENA, GALENA (via
t el econference), spoke in favor of the policy of inposing a
floor. She remarked that HB 47 did not change PERS poli cy.
She provided sone history. Galena declined its activity in
recent years, and city services plumeted. She pointed out
that there were 17 enployees in 2012. The difference
bet ween t he t wo fl oors was significant. Gal ena' s
contribution was significantly high. She provided sone
statistical information regarding PERS contributions paid
by Gal ena. She added that HB 47 was not a | oophol e.

9:36:42 AM

KATHI E WASSERMAN, ALASKA MJNI CI PAL LEAGUE, ANCHORAGE
indicated that the League was in favor of HB 47. She
relayed the difficulty of conveying to the legislature the
chal l enges. She spoke to her previous experience as the
mayor of Peli can.

Co- Chair Thonpson CLOSED public testinony.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



Representative Gara asked about the penalties. M. Labolle
replied that previous versions of the bill had penalties
and retroactivity.

Representative Munoz asked if the past liabilities had been
paid. M. Labolle believed the anmount was the anount
unpaid, but deferred to the admnistration for the actual
anmount .

Representati ve Munoz asked for an expl anati on of
termnation study. M. Labolle replied that the bill did
not address term nation studies.

Representative Munoz noted that a testifier had addressed a
term nati on study.

Co-Chair Thonpson agreed to provide that information, but
remarked that that it did not relate to the bill.

Representative Minoz disagreed, because a comrunity mnust
initiate a termnation study when an enployee was
term nated because the enployer <could not afford the
enployee. It would affect their finances, because they
needed to pay toward the costs. She wanted a fuller
under standing of the requirenment of a term nation study.

9:42: 04 AM

KATHY LEA, CH EF PENSION OFFI CER, DIVISION OF RETI REMENT
AND BENEFI TS, DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATIQN, shared that
there were two types of termnation costs in PERS. One was
with PERS since the inception in 1961, which was a common
feature in nulti-enployer plans. She stated that there were
sone plans that required the study. She remarked that, if
an enpl oyer el i m nat es cover age for a group,
classification, or departnent, the enployer nust pay the
cost that arises fromthe action. The costs were based on a
change in the behavior of people who were <close to
retirement. She stressed that the mjority of people who
reach normal retirement age, did not retire at that point.
She pointed out that only 16 percent of people retire at
nor mal retirement age. She stated that nost retire
approximately four years after the normal retirenent date,
which was how the plan was funded. She remarked that
termnating a group changed that behavior. Therefore the
person who was not currently covered by PERS would draw the
retirement at the first eligible date. At that point, the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



fund was not fully funded. The enployer nust then pay the
difference in the funding from the point at norma
retirement to the point the plan anticipated it would be
funded at 100. Term nating enployees who were not vested
then beconme 100 percent vested in the PERS benefits. She
explained that in 2005, wth the creation of the defined
contribution plans, termnation costs were covered and
again in 2008 in SB 125. She explained that as part of a
change to a cost share system there was a fear that
enpl oyers woul d renove gr oups, cl assifications, or
departnments in order to lower their contribution anmount and
| eave the accrued liability for the other PERS enpl oyers to
pay. She stated that SB 125 created a second type of
termnation cost, which required that the enployer pay a
continuing contribution for the enpl oyees that were renoved
from coverage based on the unfunded liability percentage.
The enpl oyee would continue to pay every payroll until the
unfunded liability was exhausted. She stated that a
termnation study would not trigger, unless there was a
removal of a departnent, classification, or group when an
enpl oyee was | ooking to reduce the nunber of enployees.

9:46: 50 AM

Representative Minoz wondered if the smaller comunities
that were discussed paid the termnation costs. M. Lea
replied that Galena did not have a term nation study.

Representative WIson surmsed that enployees were still
payi ng for enployees that were no |onger enployed. M. Lea
replied that, in Galena's case, they were paying the salary
score from 2008.

Representative WIlson felt that additional boroughs nmay
face a simlar issue as Galena. Ms. Lea stated that any
time an enployer renoved an entire group, classification,
or departnment there would be a term nation study.

Representative WIlson surm sed that an enployer would still
pay into PERS even wthout a termnation study. She
stressed that the municipalities would still have a cost to
the enployee, even though the enployee would not be
enpl oyed. Ms. Lea agreed that the nunicipality would stil
be subject to the 2008 salary fl oor.

Vice-Chair Saddl er reviewed the fiscal notes.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



Co-Chair Neuman MOWED to REPORT CSHB 47 (FIN) out of
committee wth i ndi vi dual reconmendati ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

Co-Chair Neuman resci nded his action.

Co- Chair Thonpson comented that the correct fiscal note
had not been read.

Vice-Chair Saddl er reviewed the correct fiscal note.

Co-Chair Neuman MOWED to REPORT CSHB 47 (FIN) out of
commttee wth i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CSHB 47 (FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with one new fiscal inpact note by
t he Departnent of Adm nistration.

9:52: 20 AM
AT EASE

9:56: 04 AM
RECONVENED

#hb188
HOUSE BILL NO. 188

"An Act relating to financial accounts for persons
with disabilities; relating to financial institutions;
relating to property exenpti ons; relating to
securities; and providing for an effective date."

9:56: 04 AM

Co-Chair Neuman MOVED to ADOPT the proposed conmttee
substitute for HB 188(FIN), Work Draft (29-LS0787\1). There
bei ng NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

Co-Chair Thonpson called M. Anderson to the table to
review the bill changes.

BRODI E  ANDERSON, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE STEVE THOVPSOQON,
indicated there were three changes in the bill. He | ooked
at page 1, line 2. The bill was anended by adding,
"limted" before the word, "property." He pointed to page

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



9, lines 2 through 8, which anended the bill by adding an
exenption (b) to Section 06.65.260, an exenption from
creditor clains:

(b) If a designated beneficiary is default for 30 or
nmore days on a paynent due wunder a child support
j udgnment or order, the noney in the program account is
not exenpt from a claim for the paynent of child
support that is in default.

9:58: 15 AM
AT EASE

10: 06: 02 AM
RECONVENED

M. Anderson pointed to reiterated that the changes were on
page 1, line 2; and the second change was on page 9, |ines
2 through 8. The third change was on page 11, |ine 20,
whi ch anended the bill by adding "except as provided in AS
06. 65. 260(b) . "

Vi ce- Chair Saddl er, bill sponsor, read the sponsor
st at enent :

HB 188 seeks to hel p Al askans cope with the chall enges
of living with a disability by allow ng individuals
and famlies to set up tax-free savings accounts,
call ed “ABLE accounts,” to pay for education, housing,
transportation or other disability-related expenses.

The U. S. Congress passed the “Achieving a Better Life
Experience (ABLE) Act” in 2014, authorizing states to
create special savings accounts for disability-rel ated

expenses nodeled after the successful “529 college
savi ngs prograns,” naned after the relevant section of
| RS code.

ABLE accounts, also known as “529A" accounts, allow
individuals wth disabilities to inprove their
financial security by wusing private investnents to
suppl ement their benefits from insurance, enploynent,
Suppl enrental Security Incone (SSI), Medicaid, and
ot her sources. Assets held in an ABLE account would
not be counted under neans tests required for Medicaid
or SSI, although SSI cash benefits would be suspended
i f the ABLE bal ance exceeded $100, 000.

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



ABLE accounts coul d be spent for educat i on,
transportation, job training and support, assistive
technol ogy, health and wellness, l|egal and other
qualified services. Contributions would be limted to
$14,000 per year, and capped at $400,000. A person
coul d have only one account.

To be eligible for an ABLE account, a person nust have
beconme blind or disabled before the age of 26. The
Governor’s  Counci | on Disabilities and Speci al
Education estimates that about 13,770 Al askans - 10
percent of those with a disability — might qualify for
ABLE accounts.

By enmpowering Alaskans with disabilities and their
famlies to build their financial independence, HB 188
will help them neet nore of their |ife challenges by
relying on private resources, wthout eroding the
value of public benefits to which they are entitled.
ABLE accounts will be inportant tools for helping them
live full, productive lives in their comunities.

Representative WIson queried the nunber of people that
could qualify, who currently could not qualify.

10:11: 01 AM

KI M SKI PPER, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE DAN SADDLER, deferred to
Patrick Reinhart.

Representative WIson wondered why there was not a
consideration of those with low incone in the legislation

Vice-Chair Saddler replied that the bill was targeted at
Al askans with disabilities. He stated that the bill was
designed to equalize the "playing field."

Ms. Skipper furthered that the bill was nodeled after
federal |egislation.

Representative Wlson felt that the bill was too limting
to people with disabilities. She stressed that there were
people that had a difficult time sustaining a job, and
added that she did not know the exact definition of

"di sabl ed. " She expressed di sconfort W th t he
differentiation of groups. M. Skipper replied that there
was a bill in Congress to expand "able" to the age of 46;

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



and allow anyone wth a college savings plan the
opportunity to "roll"™ the plan into an able account.

Representative WIson agreed to hear nore information from
t he departnent.

Represent ati ve Edgnon thanked the sponsor for the bill, and
expressed support of the |egislation. He queried a
provision in the bill that would allow the state to adjust
the age limt, should Congress increase the age |imt.

Vice-Chair Saddler replied in the negative. He explained
that the federal able legislation set sone paraneters,
because it dealt with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
provi sions. The age paraneters were set at 26, and the stat
could adapt to that level or not. He restated that the
[imt could not be changed at the state |evel.

Representati ve Kawasaki surm sed that the underage person
with the account would have a parent file the taxes. Vice-
Chair Saddl er agreed.

Representative Pruitt remarked that there was a recently
added provision which allowed for a deceased person's
remai ni ng funds be used to offset the costs of Medicaid. He
wondered where the program fell in the priority of paying
out of a person's estate. M. Skipper agreed to provide
that information. She remarked that Medicaid automatically
had a "claw back" provision, but she did not know the
priority.

Vice-Chair Saddler furthered that the "claw back"™ provision
was not unique to the legislation. He deferred the
Departnment of Law (DOL) for nore information. He announced
that there was a provision in current Mdicaid |aw that
said if a person received value or benefit from the
Medi caid program during their life, the state could recover
as much as possible to cover the cost after death.

10:17: 56 AM

Representative Pruitt wondered if the state made effort to
recover the cost after death. Vice-Chair Saddler replied in
the affirmative.

Represent ati ve Edgnon asked if the sponsor would be open to

a conceptual anendnment that would enable the program to
adapt to the possible congressional changes.

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



Vi ce-Chair Saddler thought the bill already incorporated
t hat | anguage.

Ms. Skipper announced that the proposed |anguage was
already built into the |egislation.

Representative Edgnon surmsed that his concerns were
al ready addressed in the bill.

10: 20: 14 AM

PATRI CK REI NHART, GOVERNOR S COUNCIL ON DI SABI LI TIES AND
SPECI AL ED, ANCHORACGE (via teleconference), testified in
strong support of the bill. He remarked that the effort
began to include all people with disabilities of all ages,
but Congress chose to |limt it to those people who had
acquired their disability before the age of 26. He shared
that there was an effort in Congress to increase the age to
46, to rollover the 529 accounts, and to increase the
deposit anobunts based on poverty |level guidelines. He
stated that there was bipartisan support for those changes,
but felt that those changes probably would not occur in the
current Congress. He appreciated that the |I|egislation
i ncl uded | anguage to anti ci pate changes.

10: 23:10 AM

LORI KING SELF, JUNEAU (via teleconference), supported HB
188. She shared that she was the nother of a 25-year-old
daughter with autism devel opnental delays, and was | osing
her sight. Her daughter was a recipient of social security
and public assistance. She explained that her daughter used
budgeting skills, but her inconme was only $1095. She
announced that the bills with rent, food, and utilities
total ed $1015.

10: 27:15 AM

JEFF JESSEE, CHI EF EXECUTI VE OFFI CER, ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH
TRUST AUTHORI TY, spoke in support of the bill. He announced
that the trustees had approved funding the fiscal note. He
felt that the bill provided a tremendous opportunity for
its beneficiaries.

Co- Chai r Thonmpson OPENED public Testinony.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



10: 29: 03 AM

SARA KUECI M SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in favor of the bill. She
felt that the bill would help individuals with supported
enpl oynent while also receiving Medicaid support. She
stressed that the bill helped to provide dignity to

individuals with disabilities.

10: 30: 52 AM

STUART  SPI ELMAN, AUTI SM  SPEAKS, WASHI NGTON DC (via
tel econference), spoke in favor of HB 188. He shared that
he had been working on the issue at the federal I|evel for
over 10 years. He remarked that his interest in the issue
was not only professional, because he has a severely
autistic 2l-year-old son. He pointed out that the
| egislation was enbraced at the federal level as well as
other states throughout the country. He shared that 36
states and the District of Colunbia had authorized their
own state abl e prograns.

Co- Chair Thonpson CLOSED public testinony.
Vi ce-Chair Saddl er reviewed the fiscal notes.

10: 33: 19 AM

Representative WIlson felt that the indetermnate fisca
note should really be a zero fiscal note. She noted that
the Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS) would
be covering the count, rather than the Departnent of
Revenue (DOR).

Ms. Skipper explained that DHSS would be a small conponent
of the program She deferred to M. Leary for nore
i nformation.

PAM LEARY, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF TREASURY, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE, stated that it was an admnistrative issue for the
pending fiscal note from DOR  because the CS was not
avai l able. She felt that there would be simlar fiscal note
as the one from the Labor and Conmerce Committee. The
fiscal note assigned $60,000 in FY 17; and $40,000 in FY 18
from Mental Health Trust receipts.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



Representative WIlson |ooked at the fiscal note conponent
nunber 2077, which stated that staff would be required to
nmoni t or and track accounts and file clains; and
adm nistration of accounts would involve account deposits
and bal ances to confirm that they did not exceed allowable
anounts; and nonitoring account dispersenents to confirm
that they were qualifying expenses. She felt that the
fiscal note was not related to eligibility. M. Leary
replied that DOR would oversee the program but was not
sure of the form of oversight it would need. She renarked
that there were a nunber of states that had their own
progranms, and also a nunber of states that were creating a
consortium program She explained that it was envisioned
that nost of the work, including the determnation of
benefits, would happen at the vender |evel. She believed
that it was a requirenent at the federal Ilevel for the
vender to be responsible for identifying the records of the
i ndi vi dual s.

Representative WIlson restated that the fiscal note should
be zero. She felt that the work would be done by DOR, and
paid out with the receipts from paynents. She did not fee
that DHSS shoul d be giving an indeterninate anount of noney
to provide service that would not have a cost. She wondered
whet her an individual nmust receive social security
disability benefits to be considered "disabled", or was it
any type of diagnosis before age 26. M. Skipper responded
that a person did not have to receive social security
disability benefits, rather have a doctor certificate
declaring a disability.

Representative WIlson felt that there would be many nore
peopl e added to Medi cai d.

Co- Chair Neuman requested a comment fromthe bill sponsor.

M. Reinhart shared that he <could not fully answer
Representative WIson's question. He stated that the
eligibility program was nore related to the applicant's
relationship with the IRS. He remarked that there was not
much eligibility determ nation by the state.

10: 39: 54 AM

Representative WIson shared that her son with Attention
Deficit Hyperactivity Di sorder (ADHD) would qualify for the
program She stressed that there could be a great fiscal

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



i npact to the state wth a broad definition of
"disability."

Vice-Chair Saddler replied that the savings in the able
account would be increase tax free, but would not reduce
his taxable income below the point to which he would
qual i fy for Medicaid.

Representative WIson surmsed that the noney in the able
account woul d not count against Medicaid eligibility.

Representative Minoz wondered if the nmeans test was $2000
for Medicaid. Ms. Leary stated that it was $2000, and was
the social security amount. She explained that it was the
total nunber of assets that an individual could have,
before their benefits were reduced.

10: 42: 33 AM

Representative Pruitt felt that the fund was nodeled after
a 529 account. He shared that a 529 accounts offered that a
parent could start the account, but at the age of 18 the
child could receive the account or the parent could
mai ntain ownership of the account. Therefore, the parent
was given the ability to ensure that the noney was
appropriately spent. He remarked that, at a certain point,
unspent noney could be rolled into a new 529 account or the
noney becane taxable. He noted that the difference with the
proposed legislation is that the owner of the account was
the actual designee. He queried an advantage of the
i nportance to place the noney in the hands of a parent.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked Representative Pruitt to restate
t he questi on.

Representative Pruitt felt that there was a nmajor
difference in the proposal and a 529 account. M. Skipper
t hought that Representative Pruitt was correct. She
expl ai ned t hat t he account hol der coul d have a
representative to nake the deci sions.

Representative Pruitt felt that the parent should have the
ability to maintain some control. He surmised that the only
claim that could go against the program was child support.
He queried the devel opnent of the provision. M. Skipper
replied that in any situation of child support, the
judgment would overrule. She explained that simlar

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



legislation included exenptions from «creditor clains
wi thout the need for child support. She furthered that an
i ndi vidual had asked that the specification be included in
the bill.

10: 47: 18 AM

Representative Pruitt remarked that the provision was not a
federal policy. Ms. Skipper replied in the affirmative.

Representative Pruitt stressed that the $100,000 could not
be used to nmake restitution. M. Skipper responded that the
account could technically have a maximum of $400, 000,
because of the college savings plan contribution limt. She
furthered that the noney was nore fluid, because it would
be used for expenses that were not covered by Medicaid.

Representative Pruitt stressed that the focus should not be
on what would |ikely happen, rather there needed to be an
exam nation of all the potential occurrences. He renmarked
that the bill did not specifically nention that the
i ndi vidual was the only person that could deposit into the
account. Ms. Skipper replied that anyone could contribute
up to $14, 000 per year.

Vice-Chair Saddler felt that it would take $14,000 to
achi eve the $40,000 cap on the account.

Co- Chair Thonpson woul d be gaveling out in about 5 m nutes.

Representative WIson wanted to anmend the fiscal note. She
t hought it should be zero.

Vice-Chair Saddler indicated that the fees associated by
the program were the fees could be covered by the fees set
by the investnent conpany that managed the accounts. He
remar ked that the indeterm nate note was because the nunber
of applicants was unknown.

10: 52: 40 AM
AT EASE

10: 53: 15 AM
RECONVENED

Co- Chair Thonpson indicated that the committee would be
recessing to accommodate fl oor session.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



10: 53: 27 AM
RECESSED

1: 25: 19 PM
RECONVENED

Co- Chair Thonpson indicated HB 188 would be set aside for a
noment .

HB 188 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

t#ther 4
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 4

Relating to the duties of delegates selected by the
legislature to attend a convention of the states
called wunder art. V, Constitution of the United
States, to consider a countermand anendnent to the
Constitution of the United States; establishing as a
joint conmttee of the legislature the Delegate
Credential Conmittee and relating to the duties of the
committee; providing for an oath for delegates and
alternates to a countermand anendment convention;
providing for a chair and assistant chair of the
state's counternmand anendnent delegation; providing
for the duties of the chair and assistant chair;
providing instructions for the selection of a
convention president; and providing specific |anguage
for the countermand anendnment on which the state's
convention del egates are authorized by the |egislature
to vote to approve.

1: 26: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SHELLEY HUGHES, SPONSOR, explained that HCR
4. She stated that the resolution was the second of two
resolutions that were working in tandem She remarked that
HCR 14 was in the Rules Cormittee awaiting this resolution

She expl ained that the word "counternand® neans "veto." She
expl ai ned that the resolutions were intended to restore the
appropriate balance between the states and the federal
government. She shared that a poll conducted in Alaska in
March 2015 showed that 82 percent of Al askans believed that
it was inportant to address the federal gover nient
overstepping its bounds. She understood that the federal

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



government was not the eneny, because it did nmany inportant
actions for Alaska. She stressed that the resolution was
not an "anti-federal governnent” bill. She felt that the
resolution was a non-partisan issue. She felt that it was
about the working relationship between the states and the
federal government. She renmarked that, over tinme, the
federal governnent had not always focused its attention on
national concerns, so there was currently a problem She
felt that the federal governnment often conducted itself
with disregard and a |ack of accountability to the state
and specifically to Alaska's detrinent. She felt that the
issue of Alaska National WIdlife Refuge (ANVR) was an
exanpl e of the federal governnent overstepping its bounds.
She shared that the legislature had historically protested
and resolved against the federal governnent. She shared
that there was often litigation with rare success. She
remarked that, typically, the actions of the state were net
with silence or weak affirmation from the federa
governnent. She stressed that the encroachment on the
sovereignty was frustrated for Al askans. She renarked that
there were nmany tines that the federal government did not
al ways know what is best for the state. She stressed that
the legislature had the right and duty to work to restore
t he bal ance between the state and federal governnents.

Representative Hughes stated that the first resolution
called for the convention for the counternmand anendnent.
The current legislation gave instructions to the del egates.
She remarked that the outline of instructions was intended
to keep order, and ensure that the constitution is not
di smantl ed. The resolution outlined the delegate selection
process; outlines the delegate duties; and includes the
speci fic | anguage of the counternmand anendnent.

Representati ve Hughes explained that it took 34 states, to
call the convention. She furthered that once Congress
surmoned the convention, it would take a sinple mpjority to
approve the anendnent |anguage. She explained that 38
states needed to ratify the anendnent. Follow ng that

ratification, the anendnent was added to the U S
Constitution. She stated that a particular state would
decide that ei t her a federal statute, regul ati on

adm nistrative order, or judicial decision was not in the
best interest of the state. Therefore, that state would
pass a resolution in its state legislature to announce that
it was not in the best interest of the state. At that
poi nt, another 29 states would need to pass a resolution

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



stating that the item was not in the best interest of the
state. At that point, the item was rescinded. She renarked
that she understood that the resolution would only be used
wi th great consensus.

1: 34: 30 PM
AT EASE

1: 34: 41 PM
RECONVENED

1: 35: 04 PM

M KE COONS, LEG SLATIVE DI RECTOR, CITIZENS | N Tl ATI VES (via
tel econference), remarked that the fiscal note for the
resolution was zero. He explained that until 34 states nmade
the application for the convention, there was no cost for
the upcomng fiscal year. Once the 34 state applications
occurred, the legislatures would determne the cost of the
convention. He stated that the resolution maintained state
sovereignty in the Article 5 process; and ensured a safe

efficient, and tinmely convention. Therefore, reducing any
costs the state nay pay to the delegates. He shared that
there woul d be cost savings on unfunded federal mandates by
repeal of many of the regul ations.

Representative Munoz queried the subject nunber limt, once
the threshold was net. M. Coons replied that the anmendnent
application was for a countermand amendment convention

Representative Mnoz wondered how to get items on the
convention agenda. M. Coons responded that there was no
subject, rather it was a nanmed anendnent with the state
| egi sl ative approved | anguage to the anmendnent.

Representative Hughes furthered that the subject or topic
for a convention, was through a call application.

Co- Chair Thonpson wondered whether the legislature could
di rect the delegate's actions. Representative Hughes
responded that the delegates <could only address the
countermand anendnent at the conventi on.

Representative QGuttenberg comented that the |legislature
woul d be assigning outside of the state's jurisdiction, and
dictating their actions. He felt that the legislature did
not have the authority to control peoples' actions. He

House Fi nance Committee 22 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



remarked that a representative outside of the state was
outside of the state's jurisdiction. He felt that calling
soneone back, because they could not conpromse or
di sagreed, was not a realistic nor legal situation. He felt
that it was not enforceable. He remarked that the
convention could occur with the delegates disagreeing on
the subject. He wondered if a convention could be call ed,
based on varying subjects and purposes. Representative
Hughes replied that the 34 applications would have to be
for the sane subject.

1:42:42 PM

Representative Quttenberg queried the |level of discussion
He wondered if the questions should be directed to the
sponsor or M. Coons.

Co- Chair Thonpson stated that the question could be for
ei t her individual.

Representative GQuttenberg announced that he was deeply
disturbed by the resolution. He stressed that t he
constitution was silenced regarding the delegates. He felt
that it was a legislative "power grab" for deciding the
del egat es. He shared that other states had genera
el ections for people who want to be delegates to the state
constitution. He felt that the people, not specifically
| egislators, should be sent to the convention. He felt it
egregious to assume that legislators were the only people
qualified to serve as delegates. Representative Hughes
replied that the resolution did not determ ne that
| egi slators would be del egates. She pictured the del egates
as residents of Al aska. She remarked that the resolution
set up a credential commttee of |egislators, who would
choose t he del egat es.

Representative GQuttenberg found nany references in the
resol uti on about the power of the legislature. He felt that
there should be an electoral process that allowed Al askans
to vote for the best delegate. He felt that the |egislature
did not have any special skills separate from regular
residents of Al aska.

Representative GGattis stated that she had a simlar
gquestion to Representative Minoz.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



Representative Gara wondered if the constitution would
allow voters to select the del egates. Representative Hughes
did not specify the requirenents for delegate selection.
She stated that the delegate appointnment process was
intended to include Al askans from around the state. She did
not know if the |anguage prohibited the selection through
an el ection process.

Representative Gara stressed that he would Iike the general
public to select the del egates.

Representative Gara queried the last time the constitution
was successfully changed by a state conventi on.

STUART KRUEGER,  STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE  SHELLEY HUGHES
replied that there was never a successful anmendnent through
the convention process. The closest any effort cane,
resulted in the 17th Anendnent, which was about the direct
el ection of senators. He shared that there was a point of
nearly 30 states, and at that point, Congress acted on its
own. He felt that the resolution could be a tool to enable
the states to apply simlar pressure to the federal
gover nnent .

Co- Chair Thonpson CLOSED public testinony.
Vice-Chair Saddl er reviewed the fiscal note.

1:51:14 PM
AT EASE

1: 52: 28 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Neuman MWED to REPORT CSHCR 4 (STA) out of
committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

Representative CQuttenberg OBJECTED. He indicated he was
concerned with the |egislature taking so nuch power. He did
not believe the state was the controlling body. A renmand
convention should be the people.

A roll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR. Munoz, Pruitt, Saddler, WIson, Edgnon, Gattis,
Thonpson, Neuman

House Fi nance Committee 24 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



OPPCSED: Guttenberg, Kawasaki, Gara

The MOTI ON PASSED (8/3).

CSHCR 4 (STA) was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass" recomendation and with one new indetermnate fisca

note by the Legislature.

1: 56: 26 PM
AT EASE

2:19:17 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Thonpson stated that the neeting would be in
recess until 7:30 AM

2:19:35 PM
AT EASE

2:20: 28 PM
RECONVENED

Co- Chair Thonpson canceled the 7:30 a.m neeting for the
following day. He discussed the schedule for the foll ow ng
neeti ng.

#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
2:20: 56 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 2:20 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 04/06/ 16 8:49 A M



